
Southeast New Mexico College  
1500 University Drive 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 
(575) 234-9200, Fax: (575) 885-4951

AGENDA 
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

SOUTHEAST NEW MEXICO COLLEGE 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2023 AT 6:00 PM 

SOUTHEAST NEW MEXICO COLLEGE, ROOM 153, 1500 UNIVERSITY DRIVE 
CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO 88220 

The subjects and topics to be discussed, considered, and/or acted upon at the above-scheduled meeting are listed herein. Items 
listed as “Action Items” are anticipated to be acted and voted upon at the meeting. However, the Board may defer discussion, 
consideration, and/or action on any item listed. Items do not have to be discussed, considered, or acted upon in the order shown 
in this Agenda. Please be advised that there will be a pre-meeting reception with light refreshments. No public business will be 
discussed during the reception. 

AGENDA ITEMS 
BOARD CHAIR ELKINS 
ALL 
ROLL CALL 

ACTION ITEMS 
DISCUSSION 

DISCUSSION 

ACTION ITEMS 

DISCUSSION 

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. QUORUM ESTABLISHMENT
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM 1/9/2023, 12/12/2022 AND SPECIAL 

MEETING HELD 11/17/2022
5. GENERAL COUNSEL UPDATES-ATTY. LANE MARTIN
6. SENMC GENERAL STATUS REPORT-DR. KEVIN BEARDMORE

A) UPDATES (see attached)
7. NEW BUSINESS

A) REQUEST FOR POLICY CHANGES – DR. KEVIN BEARDMORE
1. Section A-General Provisions-Policy Number 200-Mission
2. Section C-Human Resources-Policy Number 1700-Employee 

and Campus Expectations/Code of Conduct
3. Section F-Policy 600-Admission and Registration
4. Section A-General Provisions-Policy Number 500-Board of 

Trustees Financial Oversight
8. EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATION STAFF REPORTS OR COMMENTS

A) DR. ANDREW NWANNE, EXECUTIVE VPAA
B) DR. KARLA VOLPI, VP-BUSINESS & FINANCE
C) JUANITA GARCIA, VP-STUDENT AFFAIRS
D) DR. MONTY HARRIS, INT VP-WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
9. HR DIRECTOR’S UPDATE-STEVEN GONZALES DISCUSSION 



 

 

     
   

   
     

 

10. EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS (OPTIONAL) 
A) FACULTY 

1. DR. EDUARDO CHAPPA-SENMC PROMOTION and 
 TENURE PROCEDURE (Slide Presentation)  DISCUSSION 

B) ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 
C) CLASSIFIED STAFF 
D) STUDENT GOVERNMENT 

11. COLLEGE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE UPDATE-CHAD INGRAM DISCUSSION 
12. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Public Comments shall be limited to three minutes. The Board will not respond to public comments at or during Meeting. 
13. BOARD COMMENTS 
14. ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING   BOARD CHAIR ELKINS 
15. ADJOURNMENT        BOARD CHAIR ELKINS 

 
Board Packet should be available to the public upon request through Andrea Dodson at adodson@senmc.edu or 
575-234-9211. 
 
If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or 
any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact the 
Southeast New Mexico College in Carlsbad, New Mexico at 575-234-9200 at least one week prior to the meeting or 
as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible 
formats. Please contact the Office of Southeast New Mexico College if a summary of other type of accessible 
format is needed. 
 

 

mailto:adodson@senmc.edu


 

 

Southeast New Mexico College  
1500 University Drive 

Carlsbad, NM 88220 

(575) 234-9200, Fax: (575) 885-4951 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 
Date: 1/9/23        Type of Meeting: 

Time: 6:00 pm            Regular 󠇙   Work 

Session Location: SENMC RM 153      󠇙   Special 

Board Members present:   Chairman, Ned Elkins     Secretary, Tiffany Frintz  

     Member, Bill Murrill    Member, Mark Cage 

     Member, Sarah Bowman (via Zoom) 

 

       Board Members absent: N/A     

             

1) Call to Order        Time: 6:00 pm 

2) Pledge of Allegiance 

3) Establish Quorum – Roll Call               

4) Approval of minutes from the previous meetings – 12/12/22 and Special Meeting on 11/17/22 

The minutes were not included in the Board packet for review prior to the meeting so on a motion by 

Tiffany Frintz and seconded by Sarah Bowman the Board unanimously voted to table this item until its 

February meeting. 

5) General Counsel: Lane Martin stated that he had nothing to present. 

6) SENMC general status report:  Dr. Kevin Beardmore began his report by thanking the Board for selecting 

him, saying it’s been a great four days! He reported on the following:   1) The President’s Welcome has been 

posted to Facebook and social media. 2) He has met with all his direct reports and vice-presidents. 3) Dr. 

Beardmore has a top ten list of current projects including the new building, the DOE grant, comparing last fall 

to this fall applicant and enrollment counts, meeting all the SENMC employees, determining Key Performance 

Indicators (KPI), weekly open forums for operational transparency, and preparing for the HLC (Higher Learning 

Commission) reaccreditation visit scheduled for October. New items will be added as current projects are 

completed. 4) He has met with several key stakeholders. 6) The Carlsbad Community Foundation is hosting 

an MLK Banquet this Friday (January 13th). SENMC has a table and Dr. Beardmore invited the Board 

members to attend. 7) With the Board’s approval he would like to invite new employees to attend the meal that 

precedes the Board meeting and offer comp time to those that are hourly employees. He’d also like to take a 

group photo following Board meetings. This is an opportunity to record and recognize those who attend the 

meetings. (Tonight there are 32 including Board members).  

7) Executive administration staff reports or comments - Representatives reported on the following: 

Dr. Karla Volpi: 1) FACILITIES - The State had provided funds for the parking lot project. Little of the $1.5MM 

has been spent and the State wants to take back the money. We’ve been working with a local firm 

(Constructors) to get a quote. Karla is completing a form that she’ll need for a meeting with the State on 

January 19th. 2) Follow up on the HVAC Project. Met with Ameresco who have said they probably cannot give 

us the savings we need to be able to pay for this project. Karla had anticipated this but explained that SENMC 

had to perform its due diligence as requested by the state. Ameresco will be out on the 24th to look at things 

again and if they find what they suspect they will write a report that we can take to the State. 3) SENMC had a 

book buy-back in December. They did not have the volume they had hoped to see, possibly because it hadn’t 

been done in a couple of years, and it didn’t get as much exposure as it should have gotten. But this is a good 



 

 

program for a couple of reasons: (1) students get some money back and (2) SENMC can build a used-book 

inventory that it can sell. Additionally, because SENMC selected the MBS system to run the bookstore if a 

book comes back that the instructor is no longer using we can still buy it back so long as another school in the 

MBS system is using that book. 3) FINANCE - they’re continuing to work with Anthology, this week working 

specifically on HR and Finance. 4) ICT - Representatives from Anthology (Nancy Matanic and Josh Portnoy) 

presented a brief demo of the registration system from both the student side and the back-office side. Josh 

thanked everybody who’s been working on this- going live in 10 months is quite an accomplishment and he is 

proud to be part of it. This process usually takes 18-24 months. Nancy said the go live date for HR and Payroll 

has been pushed back to January 2024. Registration is scheduled to go live on February 20th. This will allow 

the processing of Financial Aid. Students and courses are already in the system. The project team has done a 

lot of testing and things are on track. Student status will be updated next, followed by end-user access and 

training. Automating the financial aid process will happen after the go live date. Finance has a similar process 

and is expected to go live in July. They have just started working on HR and Payroll, working toward the new 

go live date of January 2024. 5) Dr. Jenny Giron from Ferrilli confirmed the network replacement scheduled to 

happen during the break is complete. New fiber replacement was completed in November, then wired and 

wireless network in December. They’re now working with the laptop depots to change domains from PECOS to 

SENMC. She said the next critical piece is the security of SENMC resources-they are going to start pushing 

security policies through the governance process. Chairman Elkins relayed a question about Title IV status in 

this process and Juanita Garcia explained that Diana is working closely with the regional representative and 

anticipates having it by the time it is needed. 

Juanita Garcia, VP of Student Affairs: 1) Enrollment is currently up 13.7%. Classes don’t start until January 

18th and she expects to see a greater increase by the time of the census date (the 3rd Friday after the start of 

the term). 2) They are working with Anthology on the portal (student-interfacing side) as well as Student 

Information Systems. 3) Courseleaf was on campus to help develop the catalog in preparation for the fall 

semester. 4) A recruiter was hired just before the winter break. 

Dr. Monty Harris: 1) Representatives from Nine Degrees Architecture & Design (Cesar and Michael) have 

visited campuses in Midland and Odessa, Texas, and this morning saw the CTECH building in Hobbs to get 

ideas for designing the new building. They are expected to present a report at the next Board meeting sharing 

what they’ve learned and how it can be applied to SENMC’s new building. The Board-established committee 

(once finalized) will also visit these campuses. 2) The DOE Grant application was submitted on time but they 

want additional information. Monty is working on this. He said The Grant Plant is also providing assistance in 

gathering the additional information. 3) Monty met with a company that provides training programs for the 

DOE. They have many things already in place and offer a lot of diversity. He is continuing to explore what kind 

of assistance the company can provide.4) He is excited to report that they’re building a team for Workforce 

Development. In addition to Monty there is also Maria Quintana from Community Education and Jennah 

McKinley who has just joined SENMC as the Workforce and Community Education Director. They are looking 

for a Workforce Training Coordinator. 

8) Pre-Surgical Technology Certificate: Dr. Andrew Nwanne presented a request for approval to offer a 

program for students to earn certificates in pre-surgical technology. He shared the program outline and 

explained that this program is designed to ensure students complete the prerequisites and general education 

courses needed before they can apply for the Associate of Applied Science Surgical Technology program. He 

did caution that earning this certificate does NOT guarantee acceptance into the AAS Surgical Technology 

program. When Chairman Elkins inquired about this Dr. Nwanne explained that GPA requirements also need 

to be met. 

Motion to Approve: Tiffany Frintz  Second: Mark Cage  Nays: -0- 

9) Pre-Nursing Certificate: Dr. Nwanne also presented a request for approval to offer a pre-nursing certification 

program. It is designed to ensure that students take the courses they need to be able to apply for the 



 

 

Associate Degree in Nursing program. Additionally, it will allow students to complete the New Mexico Common 

Core General Education courses that are also required for consideration of acceptance into the nursing 

program.  Like the pre-surgical technology certificate, completion of the pre-nursing program does not 

guarantee access to the nursing program. 

Motion to Approve: Tiffany Frintz  Second: Mark Cage  Nays: -0- 

10)  Steven Gonzales, HR Director: He presented board members with his report and shared the following:  

Staffing report – 212 headcount (12 new hires since the last report), introductions of new hires present.  There 

are currently nine faculty and 6 staff vacancies. Interviews are in progress for 6 of these open positions. Carol 

Boyd, Testing Coordinator, is the January 2023 employee of the month.  Steven also mentioned that Bridget 

from Ferrilli is working with HR this week. 

11) Employee representative comments (optional) 

a. Administrative:  

Ron Morales is the new president of the Administrative Committee. The committee is working on 

identifying its purpose and improving the quality of work life for the Administrative staff.     

b. Faculty:  

Zane Biebelle, Faculty Senate President: Faculty report on January 12th and she is looking forward 

to a new semester. Focus this term is on completing the faculty handbook.    

c. Classified:   

Judi Cox-Tindol:  The annual Festivus gathering was held on December 20th. Judi added she’s 

looking forward to the new year and planning things to do for the hourly classified staff. 

d. Student Govt:  Student government president Hayley Navarrette and vice-president Sierra Gomez 

reported briefly on activities planned for the start of the spring term. There’ll be an Orientation event 

on January 17th from 4-6 pm hosted by the Grants department and additional welcome events on 

Wednesday and Thursday (January 18th and 19th.) Students are brainstorming for Welcome Week 

activities the week of January 23rd including a Welcome Back Breakfast on Monday (January 23rd), 

along with starting a passport activity sponsored by the Grants department, Taco Tuesday (January 

24th) in the Tutoring Center and a financial literacy workshop on Wednesday (January 25th). On 

Thursday (January 26th) will be the College Cookout and Clubs Recruitment from 4-6 pm in the gym 

and on Friday (January 27th) they’ll do the drawing for the passport activity.  

12) College & Community Committee: This group will meet via Zoom this Thursday (January 12th).  

13) Public Comments: Norbert Rempe – 1) Welcome Dr. Beardmore 2) Scolded the Trustees for not going to 

the website to read the minutes from the previous meeting, 3) Suggested that future agendas include an action 

item to approve the agenda. 4) Inquired about the status of the Building Committee and its members 5) 

Followed-up on the feasibility study that Dr. Volpi asked about at a previous meeting and asked if it will be 

posted on the website 6) Believes that for the Board to get input from the public the members need to respond 

to the public 7) Said the website contact information for Board members “sucks” and told Chair Elkins that if he 

is not going to respond to email messages then he needs to provide a phone number 8) suggested the word 

“uncertainty” regarding schedules (for Anthology project) is a more appropriate word than “risk”. 9) Kudos to 

Dr. Beardmore for sharing his resume and cover letter from his application 

Lane Martin: There is a lot of pressure to respond to public comments. He said the Open Meetings Act is the 

reason he discourages responses to public comments because the item might not be on the agenda. He 

pointed out that SENMC’s policy gives members of the public the option of requesting that an item be placed 

on the agenda 

14) Board comments:  Frintz wished everybody a happy new year and thanked them for attending the meeting. 

She also welcomed Dr. Beardmore and other new employees, and thanked all the employees for the work 

they do every day. Cage also welcomed Dr. Beardmore and other new employees and offered congratulations 

to employee of the month Carol Boyd. He added that he was blessed to have been part of a Caveman Strong 



 

 

event, an annual event that recognizes members of the community, law enforcement and emergency services 

personnel, and high school students. He is excited to see how 2023 will progress and expressed confidence in 

the Anthology and Ferrilli teams and the employees of SENMC. Bowman echoed Frintz and Cage’s 

comments, welcoming Dr. Beardmore and congratulating Carol Boyd. Elkins shared the sentiments voiced by 

Frintz, Cage, and Bowman, adding that he’s proud to have everyone here and thanked everybody for coming.  

. 

15) Announcement of next regular board meeting: 

Date: February 13, 2023  Time: 6:00 pm Place: SENMC Room 153 

 

16) Adjournment – Chairman Ned Elkins adjourned the meeting at 7:30 pm. 

 

 

 

 

Approved 

 

_____________________________  ___________________ 

Tiffany Frintz, Secretary   Date 

   
 



 

 

Southeast New Mexico College  
1500 University Drive 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 
(575) 234-9200, Fax: (575) 885-4951 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 
Date: 12/12/22        Type of Meeting: 
Time: 6:00 pm            Regular �   Work 
Session Location: SENMC RM 153      �   Special 
Board Members present:   Chairman, Ned Elkins     Secretary, Tiffany Frintz  

     Member, Bill Murrill    Member, Mark Cage 
     Member, Sarah Bowman 
 
       Board Members absent: N/A     
             

1) Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance     Time: 6:00 pm 
2) Establish Quorum – Roll Call               
3) Approval of minutes from the previous meeting – 11/14/22 

Motioned: Tiffany Frintz  Seconded: Bill Murrill Nays: 0  Abstain: 2 
4) Nine Degrees Architecture & Design: Executive commented that they are ready and willing to work on the 

project.  Planning on-site visits from the resources that we received and will have information available for the 
next board meeting.  Elkins requested that Monty provide information on the Odessa College to the architects.   
The architect stated that a Feasibility Study was provided in hard and electronic copy to SENMC.  Volpi 
inquired about a copy of the Study on the SENMC website and architects encouraged this for more leads for 
the project.  Elkins stated that a review of the current contract with the architect will be completed to verify 
changes needed. 

5) Ferrilli Technology Security Updates – Mr. Mallory reported on the following:  1) ICT project – Establishes a 
baseline on policies and board-approved emails and policy framework, 2) Gramm-Leah-Bliley Act (GLBA) 
financial privacy rule, protection of financial data, safeguards rule, security practices and risk assessments, 
and 3) Network Infrastructure Replacement started before Thanksgiving.   

6) General Counsel: Lane Martin stated that he does not have any topics for the board in open session. 
7) SENMC general status report:  Dr. Nwanne reported on the following:  1) Higher Education (Colleges and 

Universities) in New Mexico joint legislative priorities for the New Mexico Legislative session starting in 
January. 2) The effort of Rep. Brown to sponsor a bill that will allow SENMC to participate in the ERB 
Alternative Retirement Plan. Dr. Nwanne thanked SENMC Faculty, Staff, and Administration for the recognition 
he received. 

8) Executive administration staff reports or comments - Representatives reported on the following: 
Dr. Monty Harris: Discussed progress in U.S. DOE grant application process and working with the Grant 
Plant contractor. WIPP training implementation Matrix (TIM) has been received. Meetings are scheduled for 
the grant application. WIPP has Radiation Physics and Control training program curriculum and underground 
miner training is a deliverable towards the end of the contract. Will be meeting this week with simulator 
manufacturers for quotes. Simulators increase safety and productivity. Equipment operators do the job training 
without the exposure to hazard. It was confirmed that CDL drivers are needed and simulators are available. 
The Mayor’s committee is getting involved with this project. 
Dr. Karla Volpi:  Reported on the following:  1) Anthology meetings and testing the process, Kudos to Student 
Services, single tuition code must be broken down for reporting purposes. 



 

 

9) Steven Gonzales: Handed out report to board members and reported on the following:  Staffing report – 200 
headcount, new hire introductions, 11 new hires since last report, reported on open positions, nine faculty, four 
staff, recruitment efforts advertising in NM Nurse, Ft. Bliss job fair, January new hires, and Samantha Villa is 
the December 2022 employee of the month.  Elkins asked how many are existing or created positions.  
Gonzales reported they are all existing positions. 

10) Employee representative comments (optional) 
a. Administrative:  

Rebecca Silva reported a teleworking policy is in progress and should be ready for presentation in 
February. Currently holding elections for a Chair and a Secretary for the Administrative Committee.     

b. Faculty:  
Zane Biebelle: Reported on the following:  Loud Creation event and kudos to student who worked on 
the volumes and kudos for the employee appreciation lunch. 
Rick Wiedenmann: Reported on animals on campus policy proposal submitted due to animals is 
prohibited and SENMC has functions that include animals. STEAM day is planned for April 2023 and 
if this policy is not changed or approved by then, asked Board to consider a waiver.  Elkins stated that 
we need Legal Counsel and can work on it. 

c. Classified:   
Judi Cox-Tindol:  Reported on our Thanksgiving Potluck and Holiday Door Decoration competition. 
Student Govt:  Students are brainstorming for Welcome Week in January the week of the 23rd and 
giveaways will be reported next month.  Elkins requested that the students come and report in 
person. 

11) Board discussion of the formation of vocational trades building committee and possible selection of 
committee members:  Elkins reported that we are placing this agenda item back on this agenda and we held 
a meeting on the 17th of December.  Elkins wants the committee with no less than 20 members is 
recommended, administration is tasked as a SENMC leadership member, and the following is recommended:  
college administration, strong financial college (Dr. Volpi), staff representation, Board of Trustees, Elkins and 
Murrill, city of Carlsbad, Eddy County, U.S. DOE admin and training, three representatives from Gas and Oil, 
two representatives from the potash mines, representatives from the Carlsbad High School, two to three 
community members, the architect, not naming anyone and they need to have the right expertise.  Elkins 
asked a week or so ago to look into whether the Open Meeting Act (OMA) would apply to building committee. 
Elkins believed the OMA has application to the Committee because the Committee is merely advisory, does 
not consist of a quorum of trustees, and does not have any policy making ability. It is designed to explore 
options for the building and make recommendations to the Board. The recommendations are not binding and 
in no manner will limit the options of the Board.  Frintz motioned approval for this advisory committee and 
Cage seconded.  No nays. 

12) Ned Elkins:  College & Community Committee report Elkins stated that no meeting has been held since 
Heaton left the community.  Ingram stated that he wants to participate and will start in January with the 
committee meetings. 

13) Public Comments: Norbert Rempe – Commented on procedural items – 1) At the end of the agenda, board 
packet should be needs to be changed to “is available to the public”, 2) Follow the board packets on the 
internet.  3) Repeat that we need to update the Board contact information, as well as, list the budget 
information.  4)  Rempe believes that the Board policy that the Board cannot discuss public comment is self-
imposed. 5) Part of agenda should include the Board’s accomplishments and report on the activities. 

14) Board in closed session at 7:15 p.m.  All board members voted that the Board be in closed session to 
discuss personnel matters. 

15) Legal Counsel:  Martin commented that in his opinion, that Board members can attend meetings by telephone 
or zoom for all meetings. 



 

 

16) Reconvene into open session: 7:30 p.m.  Elkins stated that no decision was made for a senior 
administrative position VP vocational and workforce training – We discussed what this position should consist 
of and Elkins opened this for discussion.  Frintz motioned to create the senior position of VP of Workforce 
Development and Community Engagement and appoint Dr. Monty Harris as Interim.  Cage seconded the 
motion.  Dr. Nwanne recommended that the position begin on January 4th, 2023.  All Board members voted 
yes and no nays were cast. 

17) Board comments:  Cage commented that Legislative Conference for NM Counties and he is President Elect, 
and will be President next year.  This may aid SENMC in working with the National Association of Counties 
and the National Association of Sheriff’s Office Conference.  Bowman reminded everyone to be safe and 
healthy during this flu season.  Frintz commented Happy Holidays and congrats to the staff for the first 
independent semester.  Elkins commented for everyone to have a great holiday season.  Frintz stated that the 
next Board meeting is scheduled for January 9th at 6 p.m.  Elkins stated that the March Board meeting is 
tentatively set for March 20th. 

18) Announcement of next regular board meeting: 
Date: Jan. 9, 2023  Time: 6:00 pm Place: SENMC Room 153 

 
19) Adjournment - Ned Elkins: Meeting adjourned 
 

Chairman adjourned at 7:43 pm 
 
 
 
Approved 
 
_____________________________  ___________________ 
Tiffany Frintz, Secretary   Date 

   
 











President's Report Outline/Summary 

Top 10 Priorities – Working list for February 2023 

1. Complete the plans for the Vocational-Technical Building – VP Harris
2. Complete the Department of Energy grant proposal – VP Harris
3. Grow the number of applicants for Fall 2023 compared to Fall 2022 – VP Garcia will provide an 

update on Spring 2023 enrollment
4. Grow the number of enrolled students for Fall 2023 compared to Fall 2022 – No update
5. Meet with each full-time employee - Met with over 40 to date
6. Select potential key public performance measures

a. Attached list from Governor's Office
b. Revision of previously advertised position – Now Coordinator of Institutional Research

7. Explore options for operational transparency
a. Four weekly Open Forums in January, will become monthly forums going forward
b. Article published in Carlsbad Current-Argus, Carlsbad Local, SENMC website

8. Establish the independence of SENMC
a. Alternative Retirement for SENMC bill (SB 20, HB 189)
b. Capital project encumbered—Front parking lot
c. Capital project proposed—Campus HVAC replacement/upgrade
d. Revision of previously advertised position – Now Director of Web and Digital Strategies
e. Policy changes—New business

9. Meet with key community stakeholders
a. Loving Superintendent Lee White and Associate Superintendent Paula Wallace
b. Carlsbad Development Department Board Meeting
c. Rep. Gabe Vasquez visit
d. WIPP reception
e. Rotary

10. Prepare for Higher Learning Commission accreditation visit – October 2023
a. Dr. Andrew Nwanne has accepted the opportunity to serve as our Higher Learning 

Commission Liaison and accreditation lead.  This is an overload subject to annual renewal 
with the title of "Executive" added to his position of Vice President of Academic Affairs. 
Executive VP Nwanne will provide an update in his report.

Announcements 
• Dr. David McIntosh – Introduction
• Presidential vision/approach:  Faster, Flexible, First Choice



���������	
����������������������������������������������������	����

������ !"#$%&'"�($)*"%�+"#,--".)/%&,. �0

12����3456�7,./�8./�(9/.#: ;<; =>?�1><@ @�?1@2<0 �?=@=<= =<>12�2��3456�A9/.%B�(9/.#: ;<; 1?C0C<0 CC?�>�<> �?C2C<2 �0<=12�=��3456�7"D/9%-".%�,E�8*9&#$F%$9" ;<; �0?@==<@ �2?>�C<@ �?;@2<; ><@12�@��8*9&#$F%$9/F� !D"9&-".%�5%/%&,. ;<; 2�?0=�<; �=?��@<; G>?C02<;H GC2<;H12�>��I,,D"9/%&'"� !%".B&,.�5"9'&#" ;<; �1?;12<= �>?C=2<= G10;<;H G0<�H12�1��3456�9"B"/9#:�/.)�D$JF&#�B"9'&#"B�D9,K"#%B ;<; C=?;>1<� C>?1C�<2 �?>�2<C C@<=LMNOO��P�Q�R�����S��T������U��������V OWO XYZL�[WX X�Z[[MWX LMXWO \WY12=C��3"]�4"!&#,�̂&*:F/.)B�6.&'"9B&%_ ;<; @C?��C<> @�?C@1<C @2@<0 C<C12=���34̂ 6�+"B"/9#:�/.)�̀$JF&#�5"9'&#"�̀9,K"#%B ;<; �?2;=<1 �?@;=<= C11<@ ><;LM[OO��a�������P�Q�R�����U��������V OWO M�Z\NXW\ MNZM�YWN �ZYXNWM �W�12>C��b"B%"9.�3"]�4"!&#,�6.&'"9B&%_ ;<; 2C?>��<; 20?;@1<� C?�0@<� �<�12>���b346�+"B"/9#:�/.)�̀$JF&#�5"9'&#"�̀9,K"#%B ;<; �?0�2<C 0?�=�<� C?C01<0 �1<;LNOOO����������P�Q�R�����U��������V OWO \��ZOOMWM \�\ZLOYW\ c\O�W�d cOW\d1=;C�� 346�4/&.�I/-D$B ;<; C;>?�C;<@ C;=?01=<; G�?;C�<@H GC<1H1=;��� 346�+,B]"FF�(9/.#: ;<; ��?�2�<2 �2?�=C<= C?;;@<C �<�1=;0�� 346�+$&),B, ;<; @?C0@<� @?@=�<C =�=<1 ><>1=;��� 346�+"B"/9#:�/.)�̀$JF&#�5"9'&#"�̀9,K"#%B ;<; �?�;0<C �?�>C<� �@><0 C�<=LN�OO��P�Q�R�����e����������f�R�������������T�����V OWO \N�ZON�WO \MXZ\X[W� cNZ[[MWNd c�W�d1=�C��3"]�4"!&#,�g.B%&%$%"�,E�4&.&.*�/.)�h"#:.,F,*_ ;<; 1�?02�<1 @1?@0�<> GC�?=��<CH GC0<@H1=����($9"/$�,E�4&."�5/E"%_ ;<; ==2<= =@;<2 �<1 ;<@1=�0��($9"/$�,E�A",F,*_�/.)�4&."9/F�+"B,$9#"B ;<; =?10><> @?>;C<; >=�<� C�<�1=����̀"%9,F"$-�+"#,'"9_�+"B,$9#"�I".%"9 ;<; 1?>20<2 1?>20<2 ;<; ;<;1=�2��A",D:_B&#/F�+"B"/9#:�I".%"9 ;<; �?�2�<; �?�2�<; ;<; ;<;1=�=��+"B"/9#:�/.)�̀$JF&#�5"9'&#"�̀9,K"#%B ;<; �1?111<� 2�?>=><= �?>=1<� 1<@LN�OO��P���T����P�Q�R�����i������ OWO YNZ[��WN YLZLO\WN YZOMXWO [WY1=�C��3,9%:"9.�3"]�4"!&#,�I,FF"*" ;<; 02?1�@<= 0>?���<= �?�1@<; @<;1=����334II�+"B"/9#:�/.)�̀$JF&#�5"9'&#"�̀9,K"#%B ;<; 1C@<; C?�@@<; 2=;<; =C<CLNNOO��j�����	��i�������V�i������ OWO NMZ�Y�WM NMZ[�[WO YLMWM OWN1==C��5/.%/��"�I,--$.&%_�I,FF"*" ;<; 2>?=11<� 2>?>@C<@ C@�<0 ;<01==���5�II�+"B"/9#:�/.)�̀$JF&#�5"9'&#"�̀9,K"#%B ;<; =?@00<C =?12=<0 ��0<� 0<0LN[OO��i�������P�Q�R�����i�������V�i������ OWO \LNZ[M�WM \L�ZY��WM c�ZM\OWOd c\WYd1=>C��I".%9/F�3"]�4"!&#,�I,--$.&%_�I,FF"*" ;<; C1=?2C2<@ C1�?1=;<@ G0?222<;H GC<>H1=>���+"B"/9#:�/.)�̀$JF&#�5"9'&#"�̀9,K"#%B ;<; 00><> C?0>0<> C?;�2<; 0;><�LXOOO��k����i�������V�i������ OWO \\ZOYXWN \YZ�YXWM �ZYLLWL �\WX1@;C��l$./�I,--$.&%_�I,FF"*" ;<; C;?;2�<> C�?C@;<2 �?CC@<@ �C<C1@;���+"B"/9#:�/.)�̀$JF&#�5"9'&#"�̀9,K"#%B ;<; 1>�<> C?�=@<; �>�<� �><@LX�OO��R���������i�������V�i������ OWO NZ\XXWY NZNOLWX �Y�W� XWO1@�C��4"B/F/.)B�I,--$.&%_�I,FF"*" ;<; =?;@�<0 =?C0;<@ 2><� C<;1@����+"B"/9#:�/.)�̀$JF&#�5"9'&#"�̀9,K"#%B ;<; C;2<; �@1<; 0@�<; 02=<�LX�OO��P�Q�R�����m������i������ OWO �[Z[MMW� YYZ�\NWY �ZMNOWL \MW[1@�C��3"]�4"!&#,�n$.&,9�I,FF"*" ;<; �>?��;<@ 0�?02C<= �?CC;<1 C�<=1@����+"B"/9#:�/.)�̀$JF&#�5"9'&#"�̀9,K"#%B ;<; =C�<@ C?;=�<@ �2;<; @0<�

������������������������j�����Vco�����������T�������d ������	����	
��p����� 	
�Yqr������������� 	
�������� o�����iT���� s������iT����



���������	
����������������������������������������������������	����

�� ������ !"#$%&'"�($)*"%�+"#,--".)/%&,.

01233��4���5�����6�7�8�����9������ 3:3 �;<�0�:1 �;<1�=:3 �2;:; >:>?@AB��C,$%D"/E%�F"G�H"!&#,�I,JJ"*" KLK �MNBOOLA �MN�MMLO O@LB KLM?@A���C FHI�+"E"/P#D�/.)�Q$RJ&#�C"P'&#"�QP,S"#%E KLK M�OL� AB�L� BTOL� A@LB01=33��4���U����9������ 3:3 >3�<��V:3 >32<2�=:; ><>>V:; >:>?@OB��C/.�W$/.�I,JJ"*" KLK BKMN�?AL� BKMNTTOLM M?KL? KL�?@O���CWI�+"E"/P#D�/.)�Q$RJ&#�C"P'&#"�QP,S"#%E KLK ?M�LO BNOOKLK @�@L� @TLK01133��9������9�������X�9������ 3:3 ��<V3V:0 ��<01;:V >=�:0 3:1?@@B��IJ,'&E�I,--$.&%Y�I,JJ"*" KLK ��NB@�L� ��NMM@LM BO�L? KL@?@@���+"E"/P#D�/.)�Q$RJ&#�C"P'&#"�QP,S"#%E KLK OMOLA OMOLA KLK KLK01V33��6�7�8�����8������X�Z�������� 3:3 �2<V=�:V �0<��>:= ;<;1V:V 1:�?@TB��F"G�H"!&#,�H&J&%/PY�[.E%&%$%" KLK ��NAK?LB �@NTT@L? MNM@TLT @LO?@T���+"E"/P#D�/.)�Q$RJ&#�C"P'&#"�QP,S"#%E KLK BNMAML@ BNMAML@ KLK KLK01033��6�7�8�����4�5����\����5������������]������X�Z�̂����� 3:3 >0<>2�:> �3<�2�:� ><>33:> 2:1?@?B��F"G�H"!&#,�C#D,,J�_,P�%D"�(J&.)�/.)�̀&E$/JJY�[-a/&P") KLK BTN@K?LA B?N@TBL� BNK@BL@ AL@?@?���+"E"/P#D�/.)�Q$RJ&#�C"P'&#"�QP,S"#%E KLK ���LO �@MLK �TL� OL�0V333��6�7�8�����4�5����\����5��b��\ 3:3 >1<>02:0 >1<;=;:; >=1:� >:3?TKB��F"G�H"!&#,�C#D,,J�_,P�%D"�c"/_ KLK BON?TKL� B@NB�@LO BO@L� BLK?TK���+"E"/P#D�/.)�Q$RJ&#�C"P'&#"�QP,S"#%E KLK �BAL@ �BAL@ KLK KLK������d��5������������ >�1<100:3 ;<�=V<=2>:� ;<1V=<110:3 ;>V<>�1:V 0:�00;33��e������4�5����4�̂ �̂�� ;<0;V<>33:3 �<;>�<=�;:2 �<=�><V;=:V ;�0<�>;:; 1:=������e������4�5����4�̂ �̂�� ;<0;V<>33:3 �<;>�<=�;:2 �<=�><V;=:V ;�0<�>;:; 1:=0023���9��̂�������� 3:3 3:3 0><�22:� 0><�22:� 3:300232������������d����5�����\��� 3:3 3:3 >33<333:3 >33<333:3 3:3������f�����g����������h������� 3:3 3:3 >0><�22:� >0><�22:� 3:3g���������� �><;�V<�;;:1 ��<3=><�1;:2 �=<=;�<232:; �<21;<3;>:V >3:1

������������������������4�����Xib�����������5�������j ������	����	
��h����� 	
�;k̂������������� 	
�������� b�����95���� e������95����



���������	�
��
����������
������
����������������

��� ������ !"#$%&'"�($)*"%�+"#,--".)/%&,.

0$%#,-" 1"2#".%�,3�/�#,4,2%�,3�3&25%6%&-"7�3$886%&-"7�)"*2""6�,2�#"2%&3&#/%"65""9&.*�#,--$.&%:�#,88"*"�5%$)".%5�;4,�#,-<8"%"�/.�/#/)"-&#�<2,*2/-�;&%4&.�,."�4$.)2")�<"2#".%�,3�5%/.)/2)�*2/)$/%&,.�%&-" �=>??@ �=>??@ A?>??@0$%#,-" 1"2#".%�,3�/�#,4,2%�,3�3&25%6%&-"7�</2%6%&-"7�)"*2""65""9&.*�32"54-".�;4,�#,-<8"%")�/.�/55,#&/%"B5�)"*2""�;&%4&.�%42""�4$.)2")�<"2#".%�,3�5%/.)/2)�*2/)$/%&,.�%&-" =>�?@ A?>??@ A?>??@0$%#,-" 1"2#".%�,3�/�#,4,2%�,3�3&25%6%&-"7�</2%6%&-"7�)"*2""6�,2�#"2%&3&#/%"65""9&.*�#,--$.&%:�#,88"*"�5%$)".%5�;4,�#,-<8"%"�/.�/#/)"-&#�<2,*2/-�;&%4&.�%42""�4$.)2")�<"2#".%�,3�5%/.)/2)�*2/)$/%&,.�%&-"> �?>C?@ A?>??@ A?>??@0$%#,-" 1"2#".%�,3�3&25%6%&-"7�3$886%&-"�32"54-".�2"%/&.")�%,�%4"�%4&2)�5"-"5%"2 C�@ �?@ �?@ 33&#&".#: D-,$.%�,3�")$#/%&,.�/.)�2"8/%")�"!<".)&%$2"5�&.�%4"�-,5%�2"#".%�3&5#/8�:"/2�<"2�3$886%&-"�"E$&'/8".%�5%$)".% FG7?�H FG7G?? FG7G?? 33&#&".#: D-,$.%�,3�")$#/%&,.�/.)�2"8/%")�"!<".)&%$2"5�&.�%4"�-,5%�2"#".%�3&5#/8�:"/2�<"2�/55,#&/%"B5�)"*2""�2"#&<&".% FG�7?A� F�C7??? F�C7???0$%#,-"  !%"2./8�),88/25�5$<<,2%&.*�/88�<2,*2/-5�32,-�3")"2/8�,2�.,.6*,'"2.-".%/8�5,$2#"57�3,2�%4"�-,5%�2"#".%�3&5#/8�:"/27�"!#8$)&.*�5%/%"�*,'"2.-".%/8�3$.)&.*�5,$2#"57�&.�-&88&,.5 F� F� F�0$%<$% I42""6:"/2�/%48"%"�*2/)$/%&,.�2/%" =�>??@ H?>??@ HC>??@JK�LL���������M�����N�O���P����Q����R�JK�S���������M�����N�O���P����Q����R�0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�5%$)".%5�".2,88")7�U:�4"/)#,$.% �7���>? �7C??>? �7C??>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�)"*2""65""9&.*�$.)"2*2/)$/%"�5%$)".%5�".2,88")7�U:�4"/)#,$.% CGA>? =�C>? =�C>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�3&25%6%&-"�)"*2""65""9&.*�32"54-".�".2,88")7�U:�4"/)#,$.% �G?>? �??>? �??>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�3&25%6%&-"�32"54-".�".2,88")�;4,�*2/)$/%")�32,-�/�T";�V"!&#,�4&*4�5#4,,87�U:�4"/)#,$.% ��>? �GH>? �GH>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�%2/.53"25�".2,88")7�U:�4"/)#,$.% =A>? =?>? =?>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�)$/8�#2")&%�5%$)".%5�".2,88")7�U:�4"/)#,$.% GA�>? �C?>? �C?>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�/%62&59�5%$)".%5�".2,88")7�U:�4"/)#,$.% ��?>? �C?>? �C?>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�#2")&%�4,$25�#,-<8"%") �=7C=�>? ��7C??>? ��7C??>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�8,;"268"'"8�$.2"5%2&#%")7�".)6,36#,$25"�5%$)".%�#2")&%�4,$25�#,-<8"%")�U:�$.)"2*2/)$/%"�5%$)".%5 ��7A?�>? ��7H??>? ��7H??>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�$.2"5%2&#%")7�".)6,36#,$25"�5%$)".%�#2")&%�4,$25�#,-<8"%")�U:�)$/8�#2")&%�5%$)".%5 A7?�?>? C7�??>? C7�??>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�$.)$<8&#/%")�/;/2)5�#,.3"22")�&.�%4"�-,5%�2"#".%�/#/)"-&#�:"/2 �CH>? ��?>? ��?>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�$.)$<8&#/%")�#"2%&3&#/%"5�$.)"2�,."�:"/2�&.�8".*%4�/;/2)") �=>? ��>? ��>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�$.)$<8&#/%")�#"2%&3&#/%"5�,."�:"/2�&.�8".*%4�,2�-,2"�/;/2)") ��>? ��>? ��>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�$.)$<8&#/%")�/55,#&/%"B5�)"*2""5�/;/2)") �A?>? �AC>? �AC>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�/;/2)5�#,.3"22")�%,�5%$)".%5�&.�4&*46)"-/.)�3&"8)5�&.�%4"�-,5%�2"#".%�/#/)"-&#�:"/2 �G>? �=>? �=>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�/55,#&/%"B5�)"*2""5�;&%4�#8/55&3&#/%&,.�/.)�&.5%2$#%&,./8�<2,*2/-�#,)"5��A>��?G�/.)��A>���?�/;/2)")�3,2�<2"5#4,,8�")$#/%,25 C>? C>? C>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�/55,#&/%"B5�,3�.$25&.*�)"*2""5�#,.3"22") ��>? �C>? �C>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�$.)$<8&#/%")�/;/2)5�#,.3"22")�%,�3&./.#&/88:�/%62&59�5%$)".%5�&.�%4"�-,5%�2"#".%�/#/)"-&#�:"/2 �=>? A?>? A?>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�$.)$<8&#/%")�#"2%&3&#/%"5�$.)"2�,."�:"/2�&.�8".*%4�/;/2)")�%,�3&./.#&/88:�/%62&59�5%$)".%5 �>? �>? �>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�$.)$<8&#/%")�#"2%&3&#/%"5�,."�:"/2�&.�8".*%4�,2�-,2"�/;/2)")�%,�3&./.#&/88:�/%62&59�5%$)".%5 �>? C>? C>?0$%<$% T$-U"2�,3�$.)$<8&#/%")�/55,#&/%"B5�)"*2""5�/;/2)")�%,�3&./.#&/88:�/%62&59�5%$)".%5 ��>? �H>? �H>?0$%#,-" D'"2/*"�.$-U"2�,3�:"/25�%/9".�U:�)"*2""65""9&.*�3&25%6%&-"7�3$886%&-"�5%$)".%5�%,�"/2.�/.�/55,#&/%"B5�)"*2"" �>? �>? �>?

WXYYZ����� WXY[��
R�� WXY\Z���



���������	�
��
����������
������
����������������

�������� !"#$% �&"'( #�) !*++ ,'-#$*, .�/

0"#1"# 2% 3-( �,"+4 3�*5�!3 '$#6�#-7 ,�48�' (3  96  7$,(�",' 3(3-'"-# �6#"' ,#6�#*�!*+1: # �-,�-66*!$-# ;6�' (3  <=>= /=>= /=>=0"#!*+ ? 3! ,#�*5�-�!*@*3#�*5�5$36#9#$+ A�5"::9#$+ A�' (3  96  7$,(�53 6@+ ,�B@*�!*+1: # �-,�-66*!$-# ;6�13*(3-+�B$#@$,�*, �@",'3 '�5$5#8�1 3! ,#�*5�6#-,'-3'�(3-'"-#$*,�#$+ C$6!*,#$," ' C$6!*,#$," ' C$6!*,#$," '0"#!*+ ? 3! ,#�*5�-�!*@*3#�*5�5$36#9#$+ A�5"::9#$+ A�' (3  9�*3�! 3#$5$!-# 96  7$,(�!*++",$#8�!*:: ( �6#"' ,#6�B@*�!*+1: # �-,�-!-' +$!�13*(3-+�B$#@$,�*, �@",'3 '�5$5#8�1 3! ,#�*5�6#-,'-3'�(3-'"-#$*,�#$+ �=>==D �E>==D �E>==D0"#!*+ ? 3! ,#�*5�-�!*@*3#�*5�5$36#9#$+ A�5"::9#$+ A�' (3  96  7$,(�53 6@+ ,�B@*�!*+1: # �-,�-66*!$-# ;6�13*(3-+�B$#@$,�*, �@",'3 '�1 3! ,#�*5�6#-,'-3'�(3-'"-#$*,�#$+ C$6!*,#$," ' C$6!*,#$," ' C$6!*,#$," '0"#!*+ ? 3! ,#�*5�-�!*@*3#�*5�5$36#9#$+ A�5"::9#$+ A�' (3  9�*3�! 3#$5$!-# 96  7$,(�!*++",$#8�!*:: ( �6#"' ,#6�B@*�!*+1: # �-,�-!-' +$!�13*(3-+�B$#@$,�*, �@",'3 '�1 3! ,#�*5�6#-,'-3'�(3-'"-#$*,�#$+ .E>==D �=>==D �=>==D0"#!*+ ? 3! ,#�*5�-�!*@*3#�*5�5$36#9#$+ A�1-3#9#$+ A�' (3  96  7$,(�53 6@+ ,�B@*�!*+1: # '�-,�-66*!$-# ;6�' (3  �B$#@$,�#@3  �@",'3 '�1 3! ,#�*5�6#-,'-3'�(3-'"-#$*,�#$+ C$6!*,#$," ' C$6!*,#$," ' C$6!*,#$," '0"#!*+ ? 3! ,#�*5�-�!*@*3#�*5�5$36#9#$+ A�1-3#9#$+ A�' (3  9�*3�! 3#$5$!-# 96  7$,(�!*++",$#8�!*:: ( �6#"' ,#6�B@*�!*+1: # �-,�-!-' +$!�13*(3-+�B$#@$,�#@3  �@",'3 '�1 3! ,#�*5�6#-,'-3'�(3-'"-#$*,�#$+ > ..>==D .=>==D .=>==D0"#!*+ ? 3! ,#�*5�5$36#9#$+ A�5"::9#$+ �53 6@+ ,�3 #-$, '�#*�#@ �#@$3'�6 + 6# 3 FGD FED FED��1:-,-#*38 2% 3-( �$,6#$#"#$*,-:�, #�13$! �6"4+$## '�#*�$,# (3-# '�1*6#6 !*,'-38� '"!-#$*,�'-#-�686# +�$,�#@ �6#"' ,#�5$,-,!$-:�-$'�6"3% 8�$,�� 43"-38 H= IJ2 IJ2��1:-,-#*38 2+*",#�*5�#"$#$*,�-,'�5  6�5*3�#@ �"1!*+$,(�-!-' +$!�8 -3�5*3�-�5"::9#$+ A�3 6$' ,#A�",' 3(3-'"-# �6#"' ,#�-6�-�1 3! ,#�*5�#@ �-% 3-( �#"$#$*,�-,'�5  6�5*3�1  3�!*:: ( 6�$,�#@ �B 6# 3,�$,# 36#-# �!*++$66$*,�5*3�@$(@ 3� '"!-#$*,�3 ($*, =>==D IJ2 IJ2�55$!$ ,!8 2+*",#�*5� '"!-#$*,�-,'�3 :-# '� �1 ,'$#"3 6�$,�#@ �+*6#�3 ! ,#�5$6!-:�8 -3�1 3�5"::9#$+ � K"$%-: ,#�6#"' ,# H.LA/G� H.EA/F. H.EA/F.�55$!$ ,!8 2+*",#�*5� '"!-#$*,�-,'�3 :-# '� �1 ,'$#"3 6�$,�#@ �+*6#�3 ! ,#�5$6!-:�8 -3�1 3�-66*!$-# ;6�' (3  �3 !$1$ ,# H.==A=G= H<AE== H<AE==0"#!*+ ��# 3,-:�'*::-36�6"11*3#$,(�-::�13*(3-+6�53*+�5 ' 3-:�*3�,*,9(*% 3,+ ,#-:�6*"3! 6A�5*3�#@ �+*6#�3 ! ,#�5$6!-:�8 -3A�$,�+$::$*,6A� �!:"'$,(�6#-# �(*% 3,+ ,#-:�5",'$,(�6*"3! 6 H. H< H<0"#!*+ ? 3! ,#�*5�-�5-::�!*@*3#�*5�5$36#9#$+ A�5"::9#$+ �6#"' ,#6�B@*�@-% �(3-'"-# 'A�#3-,65 33 'A�*3�B@*�-3 �6#$::� ,3*:: '�B$#@$,�*, �@",'3 '�5$5#8�1 3! ,#�*5�6#-,'-3'�(3-'"-#$*,�#$+ > =>=D G�>=D G�>=DMNOPP���������Q����R����S�MNOT���������Q����R����S�0"#!*+ ? 3! ,#�*5�-�5-::�!*@*3#�*5�5$36#9#$+ A�5"::9#$+ �6#"' ,#6�B@*�@-% �(3-'"-# 'A�#3-,65 33 'A�*3�B@*�-3 �6#$::� ,3*:: '�B$#@$,�*, �@",'3 '�5$5#8�1 3! ,#�*5�6#-,'-3'�(3-'"-#$*,�#$+ <G>L=D �=>==D FE>==D0"#1"# I"+4 3�*5�6#"' ,#6� ,3*:: 'A�48�@ -'!*",# <AG�L>= <A�==>= <AF==>=0"#1"# I"+4 3�*5�' (3  96  7$,(�",' 3(3-'"-# �6#"' ,#6� ,3*:: 'A�48�@ -'!*",# EA�E�>= EA<==>= EALG�>=0"#1"# I"+4 3�*5�5$36#9#$+ �' (3  96  7$,(�53 6@+ ,� ,3*:: 'A�48�@ -'!*",# G/L>= EE=>= �E=>=0"#1"# I"+4 3�*5�5$36#9#$+ �53 6@+ ,� ,3*:: '�B@*�(3-'"-# '�53*+�-�I B�U �$!*�@$(@�6!@**:A�48�@ -'!*",# �E.>= �==>= G==>=0"#1"# I"+4 3�*5�#3-,65 36� ,3*:: 'A�48�@ -'!*",# EG�>= E<=>= E<=>=0"#1"# I"+4 3�*5�'"-:�!3 '$#�6#"' ,#6� ,3*:: 'A�48�@ -'!*",# .A�G�>= .AE/=>= .AE/<>=0"#1"# I"+4 3�*5�-#93$67�6#"' ,#6� ,3*:: 'A�48�@ -'!*",# �AL/<>= GAG==>= GAG==>=0"#1"# I"+4 3�*5�!3 '$#�@*"36�!*+1: # ' .=GAG�=>= ..�A===>= .=FA===>=0"#1"# I"+4 3�*5�:*B 39: % :�",3 6#3$!# 'A� ,'9*59!*"36 �6#"' ,#�!3 '$#�@*"36�!*+1: # '�48�",' 3(3-'"-# �6#"' ,#6 L�A.LE>= L<AEE=>= .==A=�<>=0"#1"# I"+4 3�*5�",3 6#3$!# 'A� ,'9*59!*"36 �6#"' ,#�!3 '$#�@*"36�!*+1: # '�48�'"-:�!3 '$#�6#"' ,#6 .=AG.�>= ..A/==>= .�A===>=0"#1"# I"+4 3�*5�",'"1:$!-# '�-B-3'6�!*,5 33 '�$,�#@ �+*6#�3 ! ,#�-!-' +$!�8 -3 .A��.>= .A===>= .A�==>=0"#1"# I"+4 3�*5�",'"1:$!-# '�! 3#$5$!-# 6�",' 3�*, �8 -3�$,�: ,(#@�-B-3' ' �EG>= �E=>= �/E>=

VWXXY����� VWXZ��
S�� VWX[Y���



Southeast New Mexico College  
President’s Office 
1500 University Drive 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 
(575) 234-9200, Fax: (575) 885-4951

To:  Board of Trustees 
From: Kevin Beardmore, Ed.D. 

Proposed Policy Changes 
(with Rationale) 

Proposed policy changes 
Note:   Changes in bold 

Approved by College Council on 2-1-2023 
Reviewed by Lane Martin on 2-4-2023 

Section A – General Provisions - Policy Number 200 – Mission 
Delete current text in its entirety and replace with new mission 

I. Mission - The mission of SENMC is to provide educational programs, training, and services that best 
serve our diverse students, communities, and industry.
Rationale:  New mission approved by Board of Trustees on September 12, 2022.

Section C- Human Resources – Policy Number 1700 – Employee and Campus Expectations/Code of Conduct 
II.r. Students, employees and the public are prohibited from bringing animals on campus except for 1) 
Service Animals that assist an individual with a disability, 2) animals used for instructional purposes or 
educational programming with the approval of the appropriate Academic Department Chair and Vice 
President of Academic Affairs, and 3) animals accompanied by an owner visiting the campus as noted 
below.  The Service Animals of students and employees must be registered with the Office of Disability 
Services or the Office of Human Resources.  Dogs brought on campus to attend an approved obedience 
class or for other pre-approved special events or educational training are allowed.  Animals brought onto 
the campus parking lot for purposes of utilization of Ocotillo Trail shall be under the control of the 
owner and on leashes at all times; shall maintain a distance of at least 10 feet from all persons except 
those persons accompanying the animal; and shall not be permitted within 100 feet of any campus 
building or outdoor campus event without the approval of a campus official. Animal owners are 
responsible for cleaning up after their animals.  Under no circumstances shall any person bring onto 
campus any animal known to be vicious, aggressive, or having a communicable disease capable of being 
transmitted to humans.

Rationale:  Concern raised by Professor Rick Wiedenmann at December 12, 2022 Board of Trustees meeting 
as SENMC has functions that include animals, including STEAM day planned for April 2023.  Lane Martin, 
Professor Wiedenmann, and the SENMC Executive Team drafted the above in response. 

Section F – Policy 600 – Admission and Registration 
IV. Tuition and Fees – The Board shall establish, at the recommendation of the President, the tuition rate 
for both credit and non-credit classes.  The president shall establish guidelines for tuition and fee refunds 
paid to the College.  SENMC will comply with state laws and regulations in regard to establishing 
residency for tuition purposes, including NMSA 1978, Section 21-1-4 and all applicable published 
guidelines from the State of New Mexico Higher Education Department, including the option of allowing



nonresidents to pay New Mexico resident rates 1) during the summer term, and 2) when enrolled in up 
to six credit hours during a fall or spring term. 

Rationale:  Per https://hed.nm.gov/financial-aid/residency-requirements, the following individuals may 
qualify for the New Mexico resident rate with sufficient documentation (green highlights note the items 
pertinent to the above change): 

• American Indian nations, tribes and pueblos.  All out of state members of an American Indian
nation, tribe and pueblo, located wholly or partially in New Mexico, regardless of the residence
of the member prior to acceptance at a post-secondary educational institution shall be eligible to
pay the in-state tuition rate.

• Any person, their spouse or dependent child, not otherwise entitled to claim residence, who is a
member of the armed forces of the United States or armed forces of a foreign country assigned
to active duty in the state of New Mexico, will be assessed in-state tuition rates.

• An active member of the national guard and the member's spouse and children shall be deemed
in-state residents for purposes of determining tuition and fees at all state institutions of higher
learning.

• During regular academic year semesters, nonresident tuition may be waived, according to the
institution's tuition policy, for part-time students (U.S. citizens and foreign nationals) enrolling
for no more than six semester hours during a regular term.

• During summer sessions, nonresident tuition may be waived according to the institution's tuition
policy.

• Certain Texas residents may be eligible for in state tuition rates who reside within a 135 mile
radius of the attending institution.

• Any student participating in the Competitive Scholarship shall be recognized as a competitive
scholar and reported as such, unless the student petitions for and is granted residency status.

• Any tuition or state-funded financial aid that is granted to residents of New Mexico shall also be
granted on the same terms to all persons, regardless of immigration status, who have attended
a secondary educational institution in New Mexico for at least one year and who have either
graduated from a New Mexico high school or received a high school equivalency credential (such
as a GED) in New Mexico. State-funded financial aid programs with an employment component
may require U.S citizenship or eligible non-citizen status

We need to have a tuition policy addressing the two items so that we can offer those rates to non-
residents.  This will allow us to welcome out-of-state students to begin their studies at SENMC on a part-
time basis.  In addition, it will simplify the matter of charging out-of-state students taking a for-credit 
training offering of up to six credit hours in a semester so that all (except Carlsbad residents) will be 
charged the same New Mexico resident rate. 

Section A – General Provisions - Policy Number 500 – Board of Trustees Financial Oversight 
No change to policy.  Request permission from the Board to allow the following delegation, highlighted in 
green: 
I. d.  Sole authority for establishing tuition and fees of a general nature for semester-hour credits resides
with the Board. The President shall make recommendations to the Board for establishment of tuition rates
and fees. Normally, action to approve tuition and fees for credit classes shall be taken by the Board once
each year as part of its approval of the forthcoming year’s operating budget. The Board may delegate to
the President or designee authority to approve individual course fees, such as laboratory fees for science
courses.

https://hed.nm.gov/financial-aid/residency-requirements


Rationale:  The SENMC Executive Team recommends no changes to tuition and mandatory fees for 2023-24 
(see below).  There is one fee that has been applied to all online courses by NMSU in the past, a $25 per 
credit hour fee.  This charge has not been approved by the SENMC Board of Trustees.  The SENMC Executive 
Team recommends that we do not enact this fee for the coming year for four reasons: 

• Students living outside of Carlsbad are more likely to select online options.  They already pay the
higher per credit hour tuition rate for New Mexico residents and are, therefore, more price
sensitive to this additional charge.

• This fee had been waived during the pandemic.  It was only reinstated at the direction of NMSU.
• This fee is waived for all dual credit students, resulting in the manual waiver of this fee on a course

by course basis for dual credit students.
• Nearly all courses now have an online component, so the justification for an additional charge for

an online only course is minimal, particularly given the savings in facility usage.

It is asked that this delegation of authority be permitted by the Board of Trustees so individual course fees 
can be determined by the President (including the online course fee, which will not be implemented).  The 
resulting tuition and mandatory fees for 2023-24 will be: 

Full-time student – Enrolled in 12-18* credit hours 
Carlsbad resident 
New Mexico resident 
Out-of-state      

$588 
$984 

$2004 

*Students approved to take more than 18 credit hours will be charged for each additional credit hour.

Part-time student 
Carlsbad resident 
New Mexico resident 
Out-of-state      

$49/credit hour 
$82/credit hour 

$167/credit hour 

These mandatory tuition and fee rates may be approved by the Board of Trustees now or when the 
forthcoming year’s operating budget is presented. 



Total: 213 (+1)

Job Title

Adjunct - Sciences

HSI Grants Director
Adjunct - Business

Accounts Payable Clerk
Total: 4

Job Title
Title V Outreach Coordinator 

Name

Al Nairat, Mazen 

Espinoza, Rocio 

Idhirij, Saleh

Nguyen, Alena

Name 
Beasley, Christy 
Dodson, Teri 
(Retired)

Director of HSI Grants Services 
Total: 2

Job Title
Fire Science Program Director

Instructor or Assistant Professor of Computer Science

Total: 2

Job Title
Faculty:

Human Resources Report - February 2023
Report Generated: February 6, 2023
Submitted by: Steven Gonzales, HR Director

Employee Count
*Includes Full-Time, Part-Time, Temporary and Student

New Hires

Departures

Currently in Interview Process

Current Vacancies Adjunct Nursing Program Clinical Instructor
Assistant Professor of Digital Media Technology
EMT Adjunct Instructor
Fire Science Program Director



Instructor or Assistant Professor of Surgical 
Technology  and Program Coordinator

Instructor or Assistant Professor of Computer Science

Instructors or Assistant Professors of Nursing
Total: 7

Staff:
Account's Receivable Clerk
Coordinator of Institutional Research
Director of Web and Digital Strategies
Facilities Tech
Payroll Coordinator
Tutor - Full Time
Tutor - Part Time
Total: 7



  

The Promotion and Tenure Procedure at 
Southeast New Mexico College



  

Background
● The foundation of this process comes from our 

process in NMSU.
● Several updates have been made since the 

separation with NMSU.
● One of the updates includes the Board of 

Trustees in this process.



  

What is the Promotion and Tenure 
Process?

● It is an evaluation process that looks at the performance 
of faculty over several years in their rank to establish if 
they are ready to move to a higher level of responsibility 
and/or to award continuous contract (tenure)

● Through promotion and tenure we retain our best 
faculty.



  

Criteria
● There are specific descriptions of what each 

rank means (separate handout)
● Has the faculty achieved the benchmarks set in 

their current rank?
● Will the faculty continue to do so if promoted to 

the next rank or given tenure?



  

Four Areas of Evaluation
● Teaching
● Scholarship
● Extension and Outreach
● Service



  

Progression of Ranks

Instructor Effective 
teaching

Professional 
Development

Not needed Participatory

Assistant 
Professor

Solid, expand 
teaching

Professional 
Development

Some Participatory

Associate 
Professor

Solid, expand 
teaching

Professional 
Development

Some Leadership

Full
Professor

Solid, full 
variety

Professional 
Development

Some Leadership

Rank Teaching Scholarship
Extension/
Outreach Service



  

Levels of Review
● Promotion and Tenure Committee
● Department Chair (if appropriate)
● Vice President for Academic Affairs
● President
● Board of Trustees



  

Calendar of Review
● September – October: P and T Committee
● November – December: VPAA
● January – February: President
● March – April: Board of Trustees



4 – Faculty Promotion and Tenure: The Professorial Ranks

The following defines the four levels of academic rank found at SENMC..

Promotion is not based solely on time in rank but is based on the criteria as stipulated below. This 
timetable is based on the normal institutional experiences of faculty personnel and on the expectations 
of a traditional academic career in regard to the effectiveness in teaching and service. Also addressed 
below is the promotion of College Faculty. All faculty members are expected to address the criteria in 
Section 6 in their allocation of effort statements. Tenure-track faculty members are hired on yearly, 
renewable contracts for a maximum of seven years, except in situations as defined in Section 9, part 2.

Instructor—demonstrates competence in the instructional area(s) through practical, applied, and/or 
related experience. A tenure-track instructor normally holds the minimum of a master’s degree and 18 
graduate credit hours in the field of expertise. However, experience and recognition in a career or 
technical field, such as appropriate national or state certification, may be considered the equivalent of a 
master's degree for promotion and tenure purposes.

An Instructor's job primarily relates to teaching competency (or its equivalent), scholarship and 
creative activities (i.e., professional development), and some service, although the instructor may also 
negotiate outreach/extension in the allocation of effort statement. Individuals new to this rank must 
demonstrate substantive evidence of likely success at the college, including documented evidence that 
demonstrates improvement in instructional effectiveness.

An Instructor can apply for promotion to the rank of Assistant Professor only after serving two years as 
Instructor. The application can be submitted at the beginning of the third year in the rank of Instructor 
(with promotion to the rank of Assistant Professor the following year).

Assistant Professor – In addition to meeting the criteria of Instructor, faculty must also meet the 
following criterion:  Demonstrated mastery within the instructional area(s) through practical, applied, 
and/or related experience. A tenure-track Assistant Professor normally holds the minimum of a master’s
degree and 18 graduate credit hours in the field. However, outstanding experience and recognition in a 
career or technical field may be considered the equivalent of a master's degree for promotion and tenure
purposes.

To be considered for this rank, a person must have demonstrated the ability to teach effectively in the 
applicant’s field.  An Assistant Professor's job primarily requires continual progress in teaching 
effectiveness (or its equivalent) by deepening knowledge in the teaching discipline and developing 
effective instructional strategies and techniques. The faculty member must continue to advance in 
creative activities (i.e., professional development), and service to the college and community through 
committees, councils, and special projects that support the college mission through outreach/extension 
activities, all of which are negotiated by the allocation of effort.

An assistant professor can apply for promotion to the rank of Associate Professor only after serving two
years as Assistant Professor. The application can be submitted at the beginning of the third year in the 
rank of Assistant Professor (with promotion to the rank of Associate Professor the following year).

Associate Professor — In addition to meeting the criteria of Assistant Professor, faculty must 
demonstrate an expertise over a large part of the instructional area(s). An Associate



Professor must demonstrate faculty and institutional leadership (such as curricular development, 
mentorship of colleagues, etc.) An Associate Professor is often a mid-career faculty member who has 
been awarded tenure. If a faculty member is initially employed at the rank of Associate Professor 
without tenure, the probationary period may vary depending upon agreements stipulated in writing at 
the time of initial hire. Once tenured, Associate Professors may hold this rank indefinitely or apply for 
promotion.

An Associate Professor can apply for promotion to the rank of Professor only after serving two years in
that rank. The application can be submitted at the beginning of the third year in the rank of Associate 
Professor (with promotion to the rank of Professor the following year).

Professor – Sometimes referred to as a “full professor.” This is the summit of academic rank, 
characterized by instructional excellence and institutional leadership in the college. In addition to 
meeting the criteria of Associate Professor, faculty must also meet the following criteria: The Professor 
demonstrates greater command of both the breadth and depth of instructional areas, such as a 
knowledge and application of how the field of expertise integrates with other fields of study. The 
Professor has also demonstrated institutional leadership through contributions of service and increased 
responsibility.

College Faculty – College Faculty are eligible for promotion in rank, but they are not eligible for 
tenure. The criterion for promotion for College Faculty is the same as the criterion for promotion of 
tenure-track faculty, dependent upon the negotiated allocation of effort and the job description.  (See 
Section 11)


	Dr. Chappa presentation_BoTPaT.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8

	HR Board Report - February 2023.pdf
	Sheet1




